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VILLAGE OF LOMBARD 

REQUEST FOR BOARD OF TRUSTEES ACTION 

For Inclusion on Board Agenda 

 

      Resolution or Ordinance (Blue) 

    X  Recommendations of Boards, Commissions & Committees (Green) 

      Other Business (Pink) 

 

TO:   PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

FROM:  Scott Niehaus, Village Manager 

 

DATE:  June 6, 2023  (COW)(B of T) Date  June 15, 2023 

 

TITLE:  A Motion Authorizing Execution of a Three-Year Contract Extension with 

Lauterbach & Amen, LLP for Auditing Services 

 

SUBMITTED BY:   Timothy Sexton, Director of Finance 

 

BACKGROUND/POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 

 

The Village’s current contract for auditing services expires with the FYE 2023 audit.  The current auditing 

firm, Lauterbach & Amen, had previously provided a proposal for a three-year contract (FYE 2021 through 

FYE 2023), with a three-year extension option (FYE 2024 through FYE 2026).   

 

Staff’s report to the Finance Committee is attached.  The Finance Committee reviewed this information at 

their meeting on May 22, 2023, and voted unanimously to recommend to the Village President and Board 

of Trustees the approval of a three-year contract extension for auditing services with Lauterbach & Amen 

LLP. 

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

Review (as necessary): 

Village Attorney X                                                                          Date                      

Finance Director X                                                                          Date                      

Village Manager X                                                                          Date                      

 

NOTE:  All materials must be submitted to and approved by the Village Manager's Office by 12:00 noon, 

Wednesday, prior to the Agenda Distribution. 
 

 



    

   

  

 

 
 

 

To:  Finance and Administration Committee 

 

From:  Timothy Sexton, Director of Finance 

 

Date:  May 17, 2023 

 

Subject: Auditing Services Contract Extension 

 

 

Pursuant to the Village of Lombard Code of Ordinances, Chapter 36 Article 1 § 36.02 – Audit, the 

Board of Trustees shall cause an independent audit of all the accounts of the Village to be made by 

a certified public accountant at the close of each fiscal year.  Such accountant shall be selected by 

the Board of Trustees and such audit shall be conducted independently of the Village Manager.  Full 

reports of such audit shall be filed in the public records of the Village.  

 

Lauterbach & Amen (L&A), LLP has performed independent audits for the Village of Lombard 

since 1998.  In 2004, staff issued a request for proposals (RFP) for auditing services.  Three 

proposals were received from the following firms: L&A, Wolf & Company, and Sikich Gardner & 

Co.  In 2015, staff issued another request for proposal for auditing services.  The Village received 

responses from Baker Tilly, Crowe Horwath, Klein Hall, L&A, and Sikich.  The proposals ranged 

from $196,000 to $323,000 over the six-year period, with L&A being the lowest cost of the four 

proposals received.  The F&A Committee selected L&A for a three-year term with an option for an 

additional three years based on protocols set for staff rotation, competitive rates, and past 

performance.   In 2021, The F&A Committee recommended obtaining a new contract with L&A, 

which included three years with an option for an additional three years.   

 

Included with this memo is the GFOA Recommended Practice regarding the selection of auditing 

services.  As to the question of how long an auditor should provide audit services for one client, 

there are no established guidelines on this topic.  However, according to a U.S. General Accounting 

Office (GAO) study that was published in November 2003, the average tenure of an auditor for 

Fortune 1000 companies was 22 years.  And for government audits, there are far fewer firms that do 

these types of audits.  Furthermore, it should also be noted that the main reason organizations 

switch auditors is due to a poor working relationship. 

 

  



    

   

  

 

During the 2015 review of proposals for auditing services, the F&A Committee recommended L&A 

with the caveat that we rotate staff. This has been a practice since that time with L&A.   

 

It takes a considerable amount of time and effort for firms to respond to an RFP.  Therefore, 

generally it is not good to do an RFP and then just select the existing firm, as other firms will just 

stop responding in the future.  Staff discussed this matter with the F&A Committee at their March 

meeting to get direction, and the Committee requested that staff bring the three-year option back to 

the Committee for review and a recommendation.  Attached is the previous proposal from L&A for 

a three-year contract plus an option for an additional three years.  L&A did not increase their fees 

for the 2021 audit and has proposed an increased fee each year of 2% for the next 5 years (2022-

2026).  Staff is seeking a recommendation from the F&A Committee to the Village Board to 

approve the extension for three years for auditing services for years 2024 - 2026.  

 

 



BEST PRACTICES 

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) has long recommended 
that state and local governmental entities obtain independent audits of their 
financial statements, and single audits, if required based on the entity’s use of 
federal or state grant funds, performed in accordance with the appropriate 
professional auditing standards. Properly performed audits play a vital role in 
the public sector by helping to preserve the integrity of the public finance 
functions, and by maintaining citizens’ confidence in their elected leaders. 

GFOA makes the following recommendations regarding the selection of auditing 
services: 

• The scope of the independent audit should encompass not only the fair 
presentation of the basic financial statements, but also the fair 
presentation of the financial statements of individual funds and 
component units. Nevertheless, the selection of the appropriate scope of 
the independent audit ultimately remains a matter of professional 
judgment. Accordingly, those responsible for securing independent 
audits should make their decision concerning the appropriate scope of 
the audit engagement based upon their particular government’s specific 
needs and circumstances, consistent with applicable legal requirements. 

• Governmental entities should require in their audit contracts that the 
auditors of their financial statements perform their audits in accordance 
with the audit standards promulgated in the U.S. Government 
Accountability Office’s Government Auditing Standards. Government 
Auditing Standards, also known as Generally Accepted Government 
Auditing Standards (GAGAS), provide a higher level of assurance with 
regard to internal control than Generally Accepted Audit Standards 
(GAAS), which are fully incorporated into GAGAS. 

• Governmental entities should enter into multiyear agreements of at least 
five years in duration when obtaining the services of independent 
auditors. Such multiyear agreements can take a variety of different 
forms (e.g., a series of single-year contracts), consistent with applicable 
legal requirements. Such agreements allow for greater continuity and 
help to minimize the potential for disruption in connection with the 
independent audit. Multiyear agreements can also help to reduce audit 
costs by allowing auditors to recover certain "startup" costs over several 
years, rather than over a single year. 

• Governmental entities should undertake a full-scale competitive process 
for the selection of independent auditors at the end of the term of each 
audit contract, consistent with applicable legal requirements. While 
there is some belief that auditor independence is enhanced by a policy 



requiring that the independent audit firm be replaced at the end of each 
multiyear agreement, unfortunately, the frequent lack of competition 
among audit firms fully qualified to perform public-sector audits could 
make a policy of mandatory audit firm rotation counterproductive. In 
such cases, it is recommended that a governmental entity actively seek 
the participation of all qualified firms, including the current auditors, 
assuming that the past performance of the current auditors has proven 
satisfactory. Where audit firm rotation does not result from this process, 
governments may consider requesting that senior engagement staff, 
such as engagement partners and senior managers, be rotated to provide 
a fresh perspective. Except in cases where a multiyear agreement has 
taken the form of a series of single-year contracts, a contractual 
provision for the automatic renewal of the audit contract (e.g., an 
automatic second term for the auditor upon satisfactory performance) is 
inconsistent with this recommendation. 

• Professional standards allow independent auditors to perform certain 
types of nonaudit services for their audit clients. Any significant 
nonaudit services should always be approved in advance by a 
governmental entity’s audit committee. Furthermore, governmental 
entities should routinely explore the possibility of alternative service 
providers before making a decision to engage their independent auditors 
to perform significant nonaudit services. 

• The audit procurement process should be structured so that the principal 
factor in the selection of an independent auditor is the auditor’s ability 
to perform a quality audit. Price should not be allowed to serve as the 
sole criterion for the selection of an independent auditor, rather an 
independent auditor should have a demonstrated commitment to the 
state and local government audit practice. 
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